ST. AUGUSTINE PORT, WATERWAY & BEACH DISTRICT MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING Tuesday, May 19, 2020

The regular meeting of the St. Augustine Port, Waterway & Beach District was held at the St. Augustine Beach City Commission Meeting Room, 2200 A1A South, St. Augustine Beach, Florida, on Tuesday, May 19, 2020.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Barry Benjamin called the meeting to order at 3:00 PM.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America followed.

3. ROLL CALL

Chairman Barry Benjamin, Commissioners Matt Brown, Sandy Flowers and Chris Way were in attendance. Vice-Chairman Tom Rivers was absent. The meeting was also attended by Ken Craig of Taylor Engineering, District Counsel Jim Bedsole and Secretary-Treasurer Elyse Kemper.

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

A motion by Chairman Benjamin to approve the agenda as prepared by Secretary Kemper was seconded by Commissioner Brown and unanimously appoved.

5. **PUBLIC COMMENT** NONE

6. GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS

Sidney Lindblad, St. Johns County Beach Services, reported the county pier has re-opened after repairs and admission will be free this week. Beaches are fully re-opened and are experiencing historic levels of attendance.

Jim Piggott, Director of General Services for the City of St. Augustine, informed the board of two new derelict vessels, one of which will require the services of a diver to remove. He said the total cost of \$4,205.48 was supposed to be partially offset by assistance from FWC, but payment will take several months. In the meantime, he requested the board approve and provide the expense.

A motion by Commissioner Flowers to approve giving the City of St. Augustine \$4,205.48. 00 from the District's derelict boat fund for the removal of two derelict vessels was seconded by Commissioner Way and passed unanimously.

Mr. Piggott thanked the board for its prompt assistance and said the city would like to see the up-coming District budget contain the same line items of \$25,000 for derelict vessel removals and \$8,000 for city police marine overtime.

Lt. Steve Zukowski, FWC, thanked the board for assisting with the rebuild of his agency's boat lift and remarked that FWC funding of such items is always slow. He reported regulatory buoys are missing from local bridges and that all of the aids to navigation buoys in St. Augustine Inlet are off station. He said the USCG has jurisdiction over the buoys in St. Augustine Inlet and that the inlet is considered recreational and is a low priority for the Coast Guard. He also reported FWC officers recently arrested a boater for operating his vessel while under the influence and resisting arrest without violence after he hit another vessel and fled the scene. In response to questions from Commissioner Flowers, Lt. Zukowski said residents of Summer Haven would need FWC authorization to erect "no-wake" signs along the Summer Haven River.

7. SECRETARY-TREASURER'S REPORT

Secretary-Treasurer Kemper delivered the financial report. As of April 30, 2020, the District had spent \$111,901 on projects and operating expenses in this fiscal year, and has \$2,613,561 on deposit. As of that date, the District had received \$546,216 in tax revenue since the beginning of the fiscal year with \$24,418 more expected.

8. <u>APPROVAL OF MINUTES</u>

A motion by Commissioner Brown to approve the minutes of the regular meeting of February 18, 2020, was seconded by Chairman Benjamin and passed unanimously.

9. ENGINEERING REPORT

Ken Craig delivered the report on behalf of Taylor Engineering. He began by reporting the piling and marker on the beach in Salt Run have been disposed of and a new marker installed at a cost of \$9,500. In response to questions from Commissioner Flowers and Commissioner Way, Mr. Craig said he would solicit quotes for the installation of marker lights for the jetties at the seaward end of the channel to the Vilano Boat Ramp. He said the cost could be as much as twenty thousand dollars.

He then presented a renewed contract document for Taylor's engineering services contract with the District. Commissioner Flowers suggested the contract term should not exceed two years and Commissioner Brown requested a small change in a notice provision benefitting the District. Mr. Craig said he and the District's attorney would make the changes and present the contract for approval at the next meeting.

Commissioners Flowers and Way objected to the price of \$9,500 paid to replace the marker and piling in Salt Run. Commissioner Way suggested Taylor might attempt to negotiate a set replacement price with a vendor because pilings are damaged so frequently.

10. NEW BUSINESS

A. Funding Request - City of St. Augustine Fire Department

Jim Piggott, General Services Director for the city, and Chris Pacetti, Operations Chief for the fire department, appeared before the board and requested a commitment from the board for a grant of up to \$30,000 for the purchase of enhanced Raymarine and FLIR navigation and night vision systems for the city's fire boat. Chief Pacetti explained the new system will give the crew the ability to receive directly and instantaneously Coast Guard search grids and location data. This kind of information is detailed and very subject to human error when transmitted by voice or keypad. The new system will eliminate such errors and will enable detailed night vision from the fire boat, thereby enhancing the department's rescue abilities.

A motion by Commissioner Flowers to approve the expense of up to \$30,000 for upgrades to the City of St. Augustine's marine information and navigation systems to interface with the Coast Guard was seconded by Commissioner Brown and unanimously approved.

B. Grant Request - St. Johns County Beach Services.

Sydney Lindblad, St. Johns County Parks and Recreation, reported the county is applying for a grant of \$180,000 from FIND to dredge the Vilano Boat Ramp channel and requested the board consider providing match funds for the grant. FIND Commissioner Carl Blow commented that, if approved, the work could be funded by FIND on a 50/50 basis with local match funds. However, St. Johns County can not meet the match requirement if the grant is approved. In response to questions from the board, Mr. Blow said the availability of funds from FIND depends on how FIND scores the request. The total requested may not finally be available but may be a portion, instead, or none at all, depending on the size of other grant awards. Discussion by board members ensued and resulted in a motion and vote.

A motion by Chairman Benjamin to approve a maximum of \$90,000 to be provided during the 2020-2021 fiscal year for dredging the channel to the Vilano Beach Boat Ramp was seconded by Commissioner Flowers and passed unanimously.

C. Funding Request - St. Johns County Sheriff Marine Division.

Sgt. Josh Underwood, SJSO, reported on the previous month's activities by his agency. He said they spent 190 officer hours on the water and performed 80 inspections, attended to 3 boating accidents, and removed 6 hazards to navigation.

He reported the Coast Guard's buoy maintenance vessel remains in dry dock undergoing repairs and that the St. Augustine Inlet buoys will be repaired and placed back on station when the vessel returns to service.

On another matter, he reported the county commission voted to expand the no-wake zone at Ft. Matanzas to include the entire Matanzas Inlet area. The request will now be submitted

to the Florida FWC for approval. He said commissioners wanted to include the Summer Haven River but could not do so within the applicable statutes.

In response to questions from the board, Lt. Zukowski said the only available basis for a nowake zone in the Summer Haven River is for 250 feet either side of the bridge because it is classified as a hazard to navigation.

St. Underwood then continued, requesting an increase in the District's budget from \$20,000 per year to \$25,000 per year for marine overtime for SJSO.

A motion by Commissioner Flowers to increase the funds set aside for SJSO Marine Unit overtime in the 2020-2021 budget to \$25,000 was seconded by Commissioner Way and passed unanimously.

St. Underwood then requested the board fund the purchase of thermal night vision devices for SJSO at a cost of about twenty thousand dollars. After discussion, Chairman Benjamin tabled the item until the next meeting.

- 11. OLD BUSINESS NONE
- 12. PUBLIC COMMENT NONE
- 13. COMMENTS BY COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Way said he was contacted by officials from the University of Florida Whitney Laboratory who would like to mount an electronic fish monitor on a marker piling nearest to the St. Augustine Inlet. He said the lab has been tagging various species of fish to track movement and would like to monitor the inlet for activity. Mr. Craig said that he would need to see the design of the monitoring unit before offering an opinion. Commissioners generally voiced approval of the plan but no vote was taken.

14. **NEXT MEETING:**

Chairman Benjamin announced the next regular meeting of the board will be held at 3:00 PM on Tuesday, June 16, 2020, in the St. Augustine Beach City Commission Room.

15. ADJOURN

There being no further business, Ch	airman Benjamin adjourned the meeting at 4:40 p.m.	
Secretary-Treasurer	Chairman	

wk/rg/st.aug.port/minute/2020/5-19-20reg.meetng